
 

  
Finance Committee  
 

 
TO:  FINANCE COMMITTEE   DATE: JANUARY 9, 2019 
 
FROM:  FINANCE DEPARTMENT WARDS: ALL  

SUBJECT: LONG TERM FISCAL MANAGEMENT OF THE CITY’S CALIFORNIA PUBLIC 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM FRESH START OPTION TO REDUCE 
IMPACTS ON CITY SERVICES 

 
 
ISSUE:  

Receive and provide feedback on a report about the CalPers Fresh Start savings for long-term 
fiscal management of the City’s California Public Employees Retirement System unfunded 
pension obligations. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the Finance Committee: 
 

1. Receive a monthly update on the Long-Term Management of California Public Employees 
Retirement System costs; and 
 

2. Provide direction to staff regarding the CalPERS Fresh Start Program Option. 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On October 10, 2018, the Finance Committee requested monthly updates to the City Council 
Finance Committee regarding CalPERS cost management options. 
 
On December 12, 2018, the Finance Committee received an update on CalPERS Cost 
Management options for consideration.   This report includes additional information on one of 
those options – CalPERS Fresh Start Program. 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Collective Bargaining and Representation of Employees 
  

The City maintains a strict commitment to collective bargaining which includes the requirement to 
meet and confer on any changes affecting wages, hours, promotions, benefits, and other 
employment terms. The City will not engage in activity that may be seen to run counter to the 
ability of the City and the Unions to communicate openly and honestly during the collective 
bargaining process, to find solutions that will ultimately benefit the City of Riverside. For simplicity, 



 

 

the City colloquially refers to this commitment as performing in “good faith” with the Unions and 
unrepresented employees alike.  

 

Staff from the Finance Department, Human Resources Department, and the City Manager’s Office 
meet weekly to discuss the CalPERS Challenge. These meetings generate innumerable ideas, 
including those to address cost management dimensions of the CalPERS Challenge. One such 
option currently available to the City as noted in the previous Finance Committee discussion is 
the CalPERS Fresh Start Program. 

 

Fresh Start Amortization Schedule and Alternatives 

 

The amortization schedule on Attachment 1 shows the minimum contributions required for the 
Safety Plan only to pay off the UAL according to CalPERS amortization policy. This same scenario 
is similar for the Miscellaneous Plan as shown on Attachment 2. As the City looks to address 
CalPERS cost management strategies one of the options available to us is a Fresh Start or 
alternative amortization schedule. The benefit of a fresh start or alternative amortization schedule 
is the ability to pay off the UAL sooner and the potential savings in doing so. As a result, we have 
provided alternate amortization schedules to help analyze the current amortization schedule and 
illustrate the advantages of accelerating unfunded liability payments.  
 
Shown on Table 1 are future year amortization payments for the Safety Plan only based on 1) the 
current amortization schedule reflecting the individual bases and remaining periods shown on 
Attachment 1; and 2) alternate “fresh start” amortization schedules using two sample periods that 
would both result in interest savings relative to the current amortization schedule. Note that the 
payments under each alternate scenario increase by 2.875% per year. The schedules do not 
reflect the impact of adopted discount rate changes that will become effective beyond June 30, 
2017. The same things can be said for the Miscellaneous Plan as shown in Table 2.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TABLE 1 – Safety Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Table 2 – Miscellaneous Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

The Current Amortization Schedule typically contains individual bases that are both positive and 
negative (See Attachment 1 for the Safety Plan and Attachment 2 for the Miscellaneous Plan). 
Positive bases result from plan changes, assumption changes, or plan experience that result in 
increases to the unfunded liability. Negative bases result from plan changes, assumption 
changes, or plan experience that result in decreases to the unfunded liability. The combination of 
positive and negative bases within an amortization schedule can result in unusual or problematic 
circumstances in future years such as:  
 

 A positive total unfunded liability with a negative total payment,  

 A negative total unfunded liability with a positive total payment, or  

 Total payments that completely amortize the unfunded liability over a very short 
period of time  

 
In any year where one of the above scenarios occurs, the CalPERS actuary will consider 
corrective action such as replacing the existing unfunded liability bases with a single “fresh start” 
base and amortizing it over a reasonable period.  
 
The Current Amortization Schedule on Tables 1 and 2 above may appear to show that, based on 
the current amortization bases, one of the above scenarios will occur at some point in the future. 
It is impossible to know today whether such a scenario will in fact arise since there will be 
additional bases added to the amortization schedule in each future year. Should such a scenario 
arise in any future year, the actuary will take appropriate action based on guidelines in the 
CalPERS amortization policy. 
 
CalPERS provided Fresh Start scenarios in the City’s June 30, 2017 CalPERS actuarial reports. 
Attachment 1 presents amortization schedules for a period of 20 years versus 15 years for the 
Safety Plan, while Attachment 2 presents an amortization period of 15 years versus 10 years for 
the Miscellaneous Plan. The longer amortization periods of 20 years and 15 years for the Safety 
and Miscellaneous plans respectively result in combined interest savings of approximately $21.3 
million and $77.5 million. Selecting a the aggressive and shorter amortization periods or “fresh 
start” of 15 years (Safety) and 10 years (Miscellaneous) results in total interest savings of $110.3 
million and $155.4 million, respectively. The longer-period options result in payments that in some 
instances are higher than the current amortization or lower, depending on the year of payment. 
This is due to the ramping up and ramping down of the UAL using the current method.  
 
Commencing with the June 30, 2013 CalPERS actuarial valuation, all new gains or losses are 
amortized over a fixed 30-year period with a 5-year ramp up at the beginning and a 5-year ramp 
down at the end of the amortization period. All changes in liability due to plan amendments (other 
than golden handshakes) are amortized over a 20-year period with no ramp up. Changes in 
actuarial assumptions or changes in actuarial methodology are amortized over a 20-year period 
with a 5-year ramp up at the beginning and a 5-year ramp down at the end of the amortization 
period.  
 
Staff do not recommend the CalPERS “fresh start” option because once the City requests this 
option from CalPERS it is a permanent fiscal commitment. This would lock the City into the new 
payment structure and will not allow for flexibility during unexpected economic slowdowns. It is 
expected that the City will reach critical budget deficits beginning in fiscal 2020-21 and beyond of 
approximately $15 - $20 million a year, and locking in higher annual UAL payments will exacerbate 
the budget deficit issue. Alternatively, the City can choose to mimic, rather than formerly commit 
to, one of the fresh start options now and pay more than the minimum allocation until it is no longer 
feasible for the City to continue to make extra payments modeled from a “fresh start” schedule.  



 

 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with presentation of this report. Upon direction from 
City Council to move forward with this CalPERS Cost Management Option, the costs and the 
associated long-term savings of the options will be provided as part of the recommendation to the 
report. The City’s five-year projections on CalPERS costs have been included in the City’s 
Adopted FY 2018-2020 Two-Year Budget and FY 2018-2023 Five-Year Plan assumptions.  
 
 
Prepared by: Edward Enriquez, Chief Financial Officer / City Treasurer 
Certified as to  
availability of funds: Nancy Garcia, Assistant Controller 
Approved by: Lea Deesing, Assistant City Manager 
Approved as to form: Gary G. Geuss, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments:   

1. CalPERS Fresh Start Amortization Schedule – Safety Unit 
2. CalPERS Fresh Start Amortization Schedule – Miscellaneous Unit 
3. Presentation 

 


